
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, January 15, 2019 

Northcentral Technical College 
1000 W. Campus Drive 

Wausau, WI  54401 
Timberwolf Conference Center/D100 

 
12:15 p.m. Lunch 
 
1:00 p.m. Call to order, compliance with Open Meetings Law (Wis. Stat. 19.81-19.88) 

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
 

II. PUBLIC INPUT 
A. Public Comments 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Approval of minutes from December 4, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting  
Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approve the meeting minutes from the 
December 4, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting.  
 
Voice vote required to approve. 
 
IV. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Antigo – Merrill Access Road Acquisition (Public Safety Center of Excellence)  – Rob Elliott  

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College District Board approve the acquisition of the Merrill 
Access Road at a cost not to exceed $16,000 and request the WTCS State Board do the same.  
 
Voice vote required to approve.  

 
B. Wausau – Salon & Spa Renovation – Rob Elliott  

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College District Board approve the Wausau Salon & Spa 
Renovation at a cost not to exceed $1,200,000 and requests the WTCS State Board to do the same.  
 
Voice vote required to approve.  
 
V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. Approval of consent Voting Agenda 
1. Receipts & Expenditures  
2. Personnel Changes  

 
Motion:  That the Board approves the Consent Voting Agenda including: 
1. Receipts & Expenditures 
2. Personnel Changes 
 
Roll call vote required to approve.  

 
1/46



VI. BOARD DEVELOPMENT  
A. Product and Program Development – Darren Ackley, Jeannie Worden & Brad Gast  
 

VII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
A. President’s Report 

1. Mid-Year Institutional Updates - Handout 
2. Comments from Informational Update 
3. WTC DBA Winter Meeting/Legislative Seminar – January 16-18, 2019 – Katie Felch 

 
B. Chairperson’s Report 

1. Spring 2019 Board Appointment Process 
 

C. Information  
1. Advisory Meeting Minutes  
2. Upcoming Meetings/Events  
3. Good News  

 
 

VIII. MEETING ADJOURN 
Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law".     
 
Mission:  Northcentral Technical College provides high-quality, learner and employer focused, 
educational pathways committed to enriching lives and strengthening the economy. 

2/46



 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, December 4, 2018 

Northcentral Technical College 
1000 W. Campus Drive 

Wausau, WI  54401 
Timberwolf Conference Center D100 

 
The Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees met on December 4, 2018 at the Wausau 
Campus.  Tom Felch called the meeting to order at 1:03pm. 
 
Roll Call: 
Douglas Faragher  X Ruth Risley-Gray E 
Kristine Gilmore   X Dale Smith X 
Lee Lo                        X Maria Volpe    X 
Charlie Paulson                      E Tom Felch  X 
Paul Proulx  X   

 
Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
Nikki Kopp reported the meeting was being held in compliance with Open Meetings Law 19.81-19.88 of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

A. Recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

A. There were no public comments 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Maria Volpe that the NTC Board of Trustees meeting 
minutes from October 23, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting and the October 29, 2018 Board of 
Trustees special meeting be approved.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
IV. REGULAR VOTING AGENDAS 

A. Final Modifications to the 2017-2018 Budget – Roxanne Lutgen 
Roxanne Lutgen reviewed and explained the reason for each budget modification.  
Because of the excellent job done by the employees with their budgets, it has really helped us 
with some of the self-funded health issues that have come up and did not put the college at 
any risk.  

 
 

It was moved by Maria Volpe and seconded by Lee Lo that the NTC District Board approve the Final 
Budget Modifications to the 2017-2018 Budget. (All modifications were approved with one motion) 

3/46



 
B. Modifications to the 2018-2019 Budget – Roxanne Lutgen 

Roxanne Lutgen reviewed and explained the requested budget modifications.  
 

It was moved by Doug Faragher and seconded by Lee Lo that the NTC District Board approve the 
Budget Modifications to the 2018-2019 Budget. (All modifications were approved with one motion)  
 

C. Approval of the 2017-2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report – Roxanne Lutgen 
Rob Ganschow, partner, from Wipfli joined via phone to review the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report.  
Lori thanked Roxanne, her leaders and Jeff Cichon for their help on a successful audit.  

 
It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Kristine Gilmore that the NTC District Board approve 
the 2017-2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 

D. Approval of Policy 2.7: Board Conduct and Ethics – Roxanne Lutgen 
This is a revision of a previous policy related to board conduct and ethics. The revised 
policy includes a statement of expectations, code of ethics, confidentiality, conflict of 
interest, procedures related to harassment, abuse of power, board reporting and 
complaint procedures.  
This is a system-wide WTCS initiative to update this policy.  

 
It was moved by Lee Lo and seconded by Maria Volpe that the NTC District Board approve Policy 
2.7: Board Conduct and Ethics. 

 
V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. It was moved by Kristine Gilmore and seconded by Maria Volpe that the NTC District Board 
approves the consent Voting Agenda 

Receipts & Expenditures 
Personnel Changes 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Roll Call Vote Ayes:  Faragher, Gilmore, Lo, Proulx, Smith, Volpe, Felch  

 
VI. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report 
Lori acknowledged Doug Faragher and his commitment to our Board. We truly appreciate 
his dedication to NTC, and always handling things in the best interest of students and staff. 
He will be missed and we wish him well.  
Update on Infrastructure Project – Chet Strebe  

a. Lori thanked Kristine Gilmore and the D.C. Everest School District for stepping 
up & helping us in our time of need during the episode.  

b. We are accelerating plans to expand the DR site at our Antigo location.  
c. It will include some IT best practices for a DR site (back-up generator, dual-

cooling systems, and fortifying the entire thing in concrete).  

4/46



d. Cloudian back-up system will replicate data from Wausau to Antigo real-time 
with a back-up copy pushed to the internet. We will also make an offline 
backup copy.  

e. Starting physical construction of space in February and make use by July.  
f. Working on a business plan with Roxanne to allow business partners, school 

districts and non-profits to co-habit.  
g. Tom Felch acknowledged what a great team Lori has put together and how 

evident it was from the way they dealt with the episode.  
Executive Summary of CCSSE Results – Angie Servi  

a. Through ATD we found out several colleges were implementing the CCSSE. It 
surveys the students to find out how much students engaged with the 
resources we provide.  

b. The University of Texas – Austin administers the survey. They choose the 
courses they want to survey students from. About 500 students responded to 
those courses. We then looked through and decided which programs were 
missing and added additional courses to the survey sample which was about 
170 additional students.  

c. We have received a list of which colleges are in the top performing group and 
we want to talk with them about their best practices.  

d. We put the detailed information from the survey into a database so that Deans 
and others can look at specific program area responses to figure out how we 
can best use this information for student success.  

Flexible Scheduling Update – Jeannie Worden, Darren Ackley & Cher Vink  
a. Lori reminded the board about the struggles we had last year at this time with 

regard to keeping our nursing faculty. We recognize we need to do things 
differently.  

b. Jeannie: in July we talked about the changing demographics specifically with 
regard to enrollment trends. We talked about competition with the workplace 
because of the record low unemployment. NTC as an employer also needs to 
look at those demographics from an employee perspective.  

c. Cher: we have to recruit and retain the very best. We have hired on average 
125 people per year. We don’t anticipate that will slow down. We want to be 
the employer of choice. Look at factors for competitiveness: no cost or cost 
neutral benefits, flexible scheduling, work from home options.  

d. Darren: we are making some student focused changes with faculty. We want 
to make sure we are offering classes when students need them. Planning to do 
five, eight week semesters. We will also be able to have a one week break 
between each semester where students can do credit recovery. This will also 
help to recruit and retain quality faculty which will help student success.  

Student Representative’s Report – Marquise Piotrowski  
a. Received updates from BLTs with ELTs and the student population is thankful 

that concerns are being taken seriously.  
b. Next listening session, Desserts with Deans is tomorrow.  
c. NTC does an excellent job with open houses & accessibility to prospective 

students. Being able to come in and talk to instructors and build a relationship 
before even setting food in the classroom is very advantageous.   

5/46



d. At the last WSG meeting, the topic of OERs came up a fair bit and the NTC 
student population thanks NTC for participating in the use of OERs and how 
cost effective they are for students.  

Fiscal Strength/Cost per FTE  
a. In 17-18 we were the second lowest of the 16 in terms of most cost effective.  
b. In outcomes based funding, dual credit (transcripted credit) counts which 

equates to 422 FTEs. When in the regular formula for categorical aid, that does 
not count.  

c. We are very proud that in the past twelve years we have gone from the second 
highest in cost to where we are now.  

d. In 12 years there has only been a $736 change in cost per FTE. 
Legislative Update 

a. Lame duck bills are currently taking place due the change in the state 
government. There is one bill impacting the WTCS – AB 1070.  

b. There are three provisions in this bill that impact us and we want to be exempt 
from.  

c. We will be setting up meetings with all legislators to have discussions in 
January.  

Comments from Informational Update 
a. Lori, Jeannie and Darren attended a media event/signing at UWSP for the 

partnership agreement for 1+2+1 in nursing. Thank you to Marlene, Janet and 
Angela for all of their hard work. Thank you to Suzi and Sarah from student 
services as well.  

 
B. Chairperson’s Report 

WTC DBA Fall Meeting Update – October 11-13, 2018 (Appleton, WI) – Paul Proulx  
a.   Two hour presentation on understanding and addressing harassment in the 

workplace.  
b.   Presentation on WTCS Insurance Trust  
c.    Discussion on attendance. They are trying to think about how to change the 

meeting so they can get better attendance.  
2018 ACCT Leadership Congress Update - October 24-27, 2018 (New York, NY) – Paul 
Proulx 

a. Had a full house, standing room only for presentation.  
b. Presented on completion initiatives related to Great Lakes Grant.  

WTC DBA Winter Meeting/Legislative Seminar – January 16-18, 2019 (Madison, WI) 
a. Will meet with legislators on Thursday  
b. Thought is the governor or lieutenant governor will be the keynote speaker  
c. Please let Nikki know if you would plan to attend.  

 
C. Information 

1. Advisory Meeting Minutes  
2. NTC Fall 2018 Commencement - Saturday, December 15, 2018 (Grand Theater) 

o Keynote Speaker: Dr. David Eckmann, President of the Wausau Region Chamber of 
Commerce 

3. Upcoming Meetings/Events  
4. Good News  

6/46



 
VII. MEETING ADJOURN 

By consensus the meeting adjourned at 2:49pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Maria Volpe, Secretary/Treasurer 
Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees 
 
Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law". 

7/46



NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

MEETING DATE: January 15, 2019 
 

TOPIC: Antigo – Merrill Access Road Acquisition (Public Safety Center of Excellence) 
 

POLICY: Wisconsin Statute 38 – Technical College System, 38.14 District Board Powers – (2) 
Buildings and Equipment. (a) For the use of the district schools the district board may: 2. 
Purchase or lease suitable land and buildings…. 

 
TCS 5.04 (2) (a) A resolution of the district board approving the additional or new facilities. 

 
INTERPRETATION: Purchasing or leasing suitable land and buildings requires board approval. 

 
DATA/RESULTS:  The Public Safety Center of Excellence resides on a 36 acre land parcel in 
Merrill, WI.  Land topography and wetlands limited the placement of the existing Emergency 
Vehicle Operations Course (EVOC Track).  The EVOC track runs through the middle of the 36 
acre land parcel.  During emergency vehicle operations training, access to the eastern half of 
the 36 acre land parcel is restricted for safety.  NTC would like to increase usability and access 
to the eastern half of the property during EVOC training by purchasing a 66’ wide strip of land 
(0.496 acre) from an adjacent property owner at a cost not to exceed $16,000.  The College will 
be asking the WTCS State Board for approval at its May Board meeting.  The Board is asked to 
approve the proposed acquisition and request the WTCS State Board to do the same. A packet 
evidencing compliance with the statutes will be submitted to the State Board with the 
application. 

 
 

AGENDA CATEGORY: PROPOSED MOTION: 
 

Voting Agenda BE IT RESOLVED that the Northcentral Technical 
College Board approve the acquisition of the 
Merrill Access Road at a cost not to exceed 
$16,000, and request the WTCS State Board do 
the same. 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY: I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true 
as of this date. 

 
 

Signed  Dated                1/15/19                                          

8/46



NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

MEETING DATE: January 15, 2019 
 

TOPIC: Remodeling: Wausau – Salon & Spa Renovation 
 

POLICY: Wisconsin Statute 38 – Technical College System, 38.14 District Board Powers – (2) Buildings and 
Equipment. (a) For the use of the district schools the district board may: (3) Construct, enlarge, or improve 
buildings. 

 
TCS 5.04 (4) (a) A resolution of the district board approving the remodeling of existing facilities 

 
INTERPRETATION: Remodeling of existing facilities requires Board approval. 

 
DATA/RESULTS:  The Wausau Salon & Spa Renovation project will remodel 4,830 sq.ft. of the F Building in 
support of our new Salon & Spa Program. This project will provide a state-of-the-art salon and learning 
laboratory.  This salon and learning laboratory will offer low cost salon services to community members 
who are willing to participate in the student learning environment.   Students will perform salon services 
with the help of industry-expert instructors.  
 
In order to begin construction this spring, the College will be requesting WTCS State Board approval at its 
March Board Meeting. The NTC Board is asked to approve the proposed renovation and request the WTCS 
State Board to do the same. A packet evidencing compliance with the statutes will be submitted to the 
State Board with the application. 

 
 

AGENDA CATEGORY: PROPOSED MOTION: 
Voting Agenda BE IT RESOLVED that the Northcentral Technical 

College Board Approves the Wausau Salon & Spa 
Renovation at a cost not to exceed $1,200,000 
and requests the WTCS State Board to do the 
same. 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY: I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of this 
date. 

 
 
 
 

Signed  Dated:  1/15/19                                          
 
 
 

9/46



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE: January 15, 2019 
 
TOPIC:   Receipts & Expenditures 
  
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, 
shall not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either im-
prudent or in violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to 
be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will fol-
low Wisconsin statute 38.12 District Board Duties (2) “…All expenditures exceeding $2500 shall be ap-
proved by the district board.”  Also, in compliance with Wisconsin statute 38.12(4) District board duties, 
“The publication proceedings shall include a statement of receipts and expenditures in the aggregate.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: The following Status of Funds listing receipts and expenditures including operating trans-
fers in the aggregate is included for informational purposes as of November 30, 2018. 
 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Revenues: $45,618,191 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Expenses:  $40,683,688 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated    ________1/15/19_________ 

10/46



NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
MEETING DATE:      January 15, 2019 
 
TOPIC:  Personnel Changes 
 
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, shall 
not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either imprudent or in 
violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: NTC will follow Wisconsin Statute 118.22 (2) “…No teacher may be employed… except by a 
majority vote of the full membership of the board.  Nothing in this section prevents the modification or termi-
nation of a contract by mutual agreement of the teacher and the board.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: A request is made to approve the following personnel changes: 
 
New Hires: 

1. Jessica Butts – Custodian  
2. Kaitlin Kakes – Customer Service Representative, West Region 
3. Kristy Luedtke – Academic Resource Center Assistant 
4. Kendra Milbeck – Welding Instructional Assistant 
5. Jordyn Olson – Career Coach 
6. Katherine Propp – Assistant to the AVP of Marketing and PR + Legislative Advocacy 
7. Victoria Thuot – Custodian 

 
Resignations: 

1. Jason Engel – IT Help Desk Technician 
2. Tricia Miller – College Advising Specialist 
3. Janean Morrow – Customer Service Representative, Southwest Region 
4. Kimberly Waite – Veterinary Science Faculty 
5. Pa Vang – Central Services Assistant 
6. Ivone Vazquez – Customer Service Representative, West Region 

 
 
Retirement: 
       None 

 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                                    (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of 
this date. 
 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated _1/15/19_______________________ 

11/46



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2018 Program Name: Criminal Justice 

Attendees 
Industry Members 

Terry McHugh, Chief, Kronenwetter Police Department  
Mark Westen, Sheriff, Langlade County 
Jeff Jaeger, Sheriff, Lincoln County 
Ken Schneider, Lieutenant, Lincoln County 
Tim Fischer, Lieutenant, 911 Administrator, Lincoln County 
Clayton Schulz, Chief, Everest Metro Police Department 

NTC Staff: Other 
Kris Grod, Associate Dean, Public Safety 
Chris Munson, Director of Advising and Student Success  
Paul Strehlow, Learning Coordinator, Public Safety 
Paul Clarke, Faculty 
Brian Fiene, Faculty 
Andrew Kleppe, Faculty 
Roxie Hoffman, Administrative Assistant 

 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

NTC Initiatives – Kris Grod reported on NTC initiatives including the opening and occupancy of Timberwolf 
Suites and NTC’s three wildly important goals of 
o 1 – Increase Student Success.  Increase 3-year graduation rate for ALL programs from 42% to 50% by 

6/30/2022.   
o 2 – Grow Skilled Workforce.  Increase FTEs from 3,083 to 3,122 by 6/30/2022 with an emphasis on part-

time tracks.  The CJ team has tentatively developed a part-time track.   
o 3 – Strengthen Infrastructure.  Streamline college-wide processes to increase the safety, sophistication, and 

efficiency of learning and work environments by 6/30/2020.  As part of working toward this goal, the 
college has switched its online platform from Blackboard to Canvas.  With Canvas, we are also using a tool 
called Starfish, which helps students connect with instructors, advisors, and resources on campus. 

Curriculum/Assessment – Brian Fiene reported on Technical Skills Attainment (TSA) Phase 2.  In spring the 
committee reviewed the TSA, which indicates where the program outcomes are introduced, practiced, and 
assessed.  This went to the curriculum office and has to be approved by the state office.  The next step is a 
program assessment tool.  These tools identify what a graduate should be able to do by the end of the program.   
Industry Trends –  
o Clayton Schulz commented that the interview techniques by candidates have improved over the past 

couple of years.  Candidates have been interviewing a lot better.  
o Tim Fischer asked about the number of students.   

Brian Fiene responded that we start in the 30-ish range each semester; however, graduation rates vary 
from 24 to 2.  The current 4th semester has 7 students but that group started with 28.  Some went to 
the military, some had work schedules that conflicted too much with school, some had personality 
traits that didn’t work out, and some want to delay.  Those who drop may go to another program 
(about half).  We want to graduate people who will work out well in the industry.  We want our name 
on the transcript to mean something and will not cut standards to push students out.  Chris Munson 
said 26 students are matriculated for the program for spring.  
As part of retention, the CJ team has talked to each students at 4 weeks and will do it again at 11 
weeks to see where they are.   
The CJ Team invited any departments who want to come to talk about their hiring process and what 
they are looking for to contact the instructors to set up a time.   

12/46



o Mark Westen asked about dispatching.  Andrew Kleppe said he has brought it up a number of times.  The 
state said they don’t have money for it although they understand the certification is needed.  Chris Munson 
said students are interested.  One of the problems is that different areas handle dispatch differently.   

Program Information – Current Academies - Currently, 17 students are enrolled in the Law Enforcement 
Academy.  We plan to do a full-time Law Enforcement Academy in spring.  We are also planning a full-time Jail 
Academy right after the first of the year that will run four consecutive weeks.  We will run one Law Enforcement 
Academy and one Jail Academy each semester.  The spring Jail Academy will be full-time and the fall academy 
will be part-time.  Ten students are enrolled in the Jail Academy currently.  Of those, three are already 
employed. 
Facilities/Equipment - Paul Clarke showed the SB Tactical equipment purchased earlier this year.  The purpose 
of the equipment is to get feedback on what happens in various scenarios.  The rifles have the look and feel of 
an AR but are not firearms from an ATF standpoint.  We also have pistols.  All are battery powered.  The smart 
magazines can be set to various numbers of rounds.  The rifle shoots a laser, but it has to be in the ballpark of a 
sensor.  The electronics connect with a “you-got-shot” vest.  The vest can “talk” to two different accessories—a 
headband and a stress belt.   
Continuing Education/Business & Industry  
o Upcoming training opportunities: 

The Reid Technique of Interview and Interrogation, February 19-22, 2019, 8 a.m. – 3 p.m. each day, 
$599, Wausau Campus – This training extensively covers material that will help attendees become 
more effective when working with a suspect and apply the skills and concepts learned to their own 
interrogations and interviews.   
Field Training Officer, January 14-18, 2019, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m. each day, $399, Wausau Campus – This 
course is specifically designed for experienced uniformed patrol personnel selected to serve as field 
training officers with probationary employees. 
Crisis Intervention Team, November 5-9, 2018.  Contact is Chad Billeb. 
Vehicle Contacts Instructor, December 4-6, 2018.  Mark Wagers is the instructor. 
Rifle Instructor School, December 7-9, 2018, Merrill Public Safety Tactical Shooting Range. 

Clayton Schulz asked about the possibility of offering more mid-level and upper management courses covering 
management rights, department discipline, performance improvement, or hiring.    Kris Grod will put him in 
touch with Brad Gast in Continuing Education. 
Youth Sheriff’s Academy – Paul Clarke reported that this was a Marathon County Sheriff’s event but they 
partnered with NTC regarding facilities.  This was a weeklong class for Merrill, Wausau, and Tomahawk students 
who finished their freshman year through junior year of high school.  The students had to write an essay as to 
why they were interested and then were handpicked.  Some things they covered were DAAT, use of force, the 
K-9 unit, toured the courthouse and dispatch center, discussed physical evidence, and had a debrief of a major 
crime investigation.  They also had a day of what the job and hiring process is like and what they should do in 
school to be successful.  The college has initiatives to try to explore more of these camps and maybe utilize the 
Timberwolf Suites and have an overnight camp.  We are open to the possibility of other agencies working with 
the college on these. 
Next Meeting - Tuesday, April 23, 2019, at noon at the Wausau NTC campus. 

 

 

 

 

 

13/46



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Fire Services Advisory Committee 
October 18, 2018 6:00 p.m. 

Room PS111, Public Safety Center of Excellence, Merrill 

Meeting Date: October 18, 2018 Program Name:  Fire 

Attendees 

Industry Members 
Jason Minks, Kennan FD (Chair) 
Robert Pound, SAFER 
Bill Felch, Fifield FD 
Steve Meilahn, Retired Chief 

NTC Staff: Other: 
Kris Grod, Associate Dean of Public Safety 
Kyle Lech, Faculty 
Dan Conrad, Faculty 
Paul Strehlow, Learning Coordinator of Public Safety 
Gera Peterson, Administrative Assistant 
 

 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

College-Wide Initiatives: 
Timberwolf Suites:  Student apartments on main Wausau campus opened with 100 students this semester.  
Capacity is 187.  Out of district applications have increased 20% due to having this student housing.  
Canvas:  We started using this new computer software program for a few summer 2018 classes and now all 
fall classes are using it.  It has been successfully implemented and is very user friendly for students and 
staff. 
Starfish:  This program is being used with our Associate Degree students.  Instructors can monitor problems 
and issues by flagging student accounts and then their Advisors are notified and can contact the students if 
necessary. 
CPAT Addition: Construction has started on this addition to the Merrill building.  This is for the Candidate 
Physical Ability Training (CPAT).  It will be about 50’ x 100’ and is scheduled to be completed by January 
2019. 

 
 
Industry Trends: 

Recruitment and Retention:  We are still discussing how to recruit and retain more students into our 
firefighting programs.  Kennan Fire Department happily reported that they currently have 5 new firefighters 
taking classes to become trained for their department.  They have not been able to hire that many people in 
a long time.  We also discussed how it is now possible to recruit students that are 16 years old.  16-17 year 
olds can become State Certified as long as a parent/guardian signs off.  The college has also been hosting 
many K12 events for schools in order to continue to encourage student’s interest in NTC. 
 

Program Information – State Updates: 
State is working on removing the requirement of State Certified Fire Fighter 1 in order to become State 
Certified Driver Operator Pumper. 

14/46



New NFPA 1001-Standard for Fire Fighter Professional Qualifications has been released.  We will see 
changes in Fire 1 and Fire 2 curriculums and the text books will change within the next year.   
They are in the process of revising all of the Haz Mat curriculum.  This includes Haz Mat Operations and Haz 
Mat Technician.  There will be more to come on these revisions. 

 
Curriculum/Assessment: 

Minimum Class Size Requirements:   We now require a minimum of 8 students to run a Continuing 
Education class.  The 8 students need to be registered 2 weeks before start of class. 

 
Spring 2019 Schedule:  We are scheduling out almost a year in advance and are trying to get classes on a 
rotation in the different regions to help ensure larger class sizes.  Asked members to reference the Spring 
Class Flyer.  Note:  Incident Safety Officer at Phillips is not listed as we are waiting to find out about funding. 
 
On-line Associate Degree Status:  We still have this On-line Degree, but we are not sure how long it will 
stay.  Not getting the interest we expected. 

 
Fire/EMS University:   We will revisit the Fire/EMS University for fall of 2019.  Looking at 2nd weekend of 
September 2019.  We will be forming a group to begin the planning process of this event.  Group 
brainstormed some possible class ideas including: fire basics, using burn box for a Fire Behaviors 
class/refresher, rotating through different training stations, and utilizing new equipment (i.e. new smoke 
machines).  Group also thought 1 day event would be better than 2 days. 

 
Summer Fire Academy/Summer 2019 Schedule:  Due to declining enrollments the last 2 summers, we 
decided to change this year’s Summer Fire Academy.  We will not be running Certified Firefighter 1.  We will 
run Certified Firefighter 2 and some Ropes courses instead.  FF2 will run in June 2019 and the Ropes courses 
will run in July 2019. 

 
Part-time Associate Degree Pathway:   We are working on a part-time pathway for students to finish the 
Fire Medic program.   One of our college initiatives is working with people who need part-time classes and 
we have had a lot of requests for evening part-time classes.  69.7% of NTC students are part-time.   
 
Career Pathways:  We still struggle with getting students to enroll at NTC right out of high school.  Direct 
high school enrollment has stayed consistent at 30%.  About 50% of high school students are enrolling 
within 3 years of graduating.  The average age of an NTC student is now 23.  The launch of a new NTC 
website has caused a 61% increase in website use this year. 

  
Canvas:   As mentioned previously, we have been using the Canvas software in our Continuing Education 
classes since this summer.  We have been successfully implementing it.  It is user friendly for students and 
instructors. 
 
Pro Board Certification:   Still working on Pro Board certification process with College Advancement Team.   
 
Grading Scale:   New grading scale has been implemented where students need to maintain an 80% in class.  
This mirrors the grading scale that our EMS team is using. 

 
Attendance Policy:  New attendance policy has also gone into effect.  Students can only miss up to 10% of 
class.  This also mirrors the EMS team Attendance policy. 

 
Equipment Facilities: 

CPAT Addition:   Construction recently started on the Candidate Physical Ability Training building (it will be 
about 50’x100’).  It is supposed to be completed by Jan 2019.  We are hoping to be able to use area for 

15/46



 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: October 24, 2018  Program Name: Mechanical Design 

Attendees 
Industry Members 

Chris Chula (ADC Equipment), Joe Yelle (ADC Equipment), Carl Dahm (Greenheck), Michael Heiring (Siemens 
Energy), Eric Brittenham (Piper Products), David Voelker (Crystal Finishing), Jim Peterson (Enerquip), Joe Jackan 
(Jarp Industries), Luke Schultz (A&B Process Systems), Roger Clark (Imperial Industries), Shane Herdt (Imperial 
Industries), Mike Greenheck (CTECH Manufacturing), Mike Koss (Rops & Cab Engineering), David Williamson (A-
Team Machine) 

NTC Staff: Other 
Bryan LaVigne (faculty), Chris Severson (Dean, ScET), 
Jared Eggebrecht (Director of Sales), Brad Schinker 
(faculty) 

 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

Agenda 1: All present introduced themselves and the organizations they represent. 
Agenda 2: Meeting minutes were reviewed. A sign-in sheet was circulated. 
Agenda 3: Chris Severson gave an overview of various college-wide initiatives. These included reporting 
69% NTC student base identify as part-time students and the steps NTC is taking to provide greater 
flexibility to meet student need/demand; NTC programs transitioning coursework, where appropriate and 
applicable, to 8-week cohort class offerings in an effort in increase student success, persistence and 

testing by summer 2019.  We hope to run tests every other week.  Building was partially funded by a 
generous donor.   

 
Water Based Smoke Machines:  There have been numerous cases of instructors developing serious 
respiratory problems from breathing in oil based smoke.  See Article.  We recently purchased 2 Water Based 
smoke machines to replace our oil based ones.  These water based machines put out about 6 times the 
amount of smoke as the older oil based machines. 
 
2017 AFG Award – State Fire Training:   We were awarded $28,560. We are in process of ordering some 
things with those funds.  This will include the following purchases:  1-2 Thermal imaging camera kits ($6,700 
each), Piercing Nozzles ($1500), 2 Hi-Lift 1st Responder Extrication Jacks ($800), Junkyard Dog Knife Kit 
($575), Little Giant Overhaul Ladder ($1050), Little Giant Defender Ladder, and Window Simulator Training 
Systems ($10,140 for 3 systems).   

 
Capital Budget:   We were awarded $112,000 from the college for 2018-2019.  This is what we have 
purchased so far:  Grain bin rescue tube with auger, Instructor SCBA with thermal imaging, New 
Rope/Confined space harnesses and helmets for instructors, Con Space USAR Task Force Kits, Con Space 
Hasty Search Kit, Emergency confined space escape bottles with air lines, students gloves, student helmets, 
student hoods, Griphoist, Paratech Multi-forces airbag, Hydrofusion hydraulic strut, and Trench air bag 
system. 

 
Continuing Education/Business & Industry Solutions Initiatives: 

5 Alarm Leadership event Flyer was discussed.  Speaker Rick Lasky will be here on March 30, 2019.  We will 
also be trying to bring in different speakers every 12-18 months. 
Technical Rescue and Haz Mat classes can be funded through Wisconsin Emergency Management (WEM).   
Advised everyone to review their folders for upcoming classes and events. 

16/46



retention; an update on Timberwolf Suites and how there has been a 20% increase in students attending 
NTC from out-of-district since the residence hall opened; Electrical Power Distribution-Lineman program 
launched Fall 2018; new program NTC is investigating including Gas Utility, Automation, Civil Engineering, 
and Salon & Spa; and the unveiling of NTC’s new Timberwolf Conference Center, located in old auditorium 
(HSC 1004) space in the Center for Health Sciences. 
Agenda 4: Jared Eggebrecht gave an overview of the services available through Business & Industry 
Services, including delivering customized training programs for organizations. Trainings may take place 
either on site or at NTC. See attached documentation for more information regarding opportunities 
offered. For more information about the services/programming offered by the Business & Industry team, 
please contact Jared at eggebrecht@ntc.edu. 
Agenda 5: 

o Program Information 
Enrollment Report: Faculty reviewed enrollments for the Mechanical Design program. 
There are currently 24 first-semester students, 6 second-semester students, 15 third-
semester students and 9 fourth-semester students (total enrolled in program is 54). The 
program may accept up to 24 new students every fall and spring.   
Graduate Follow-Up Report: The advisory committee reviewed the 2017 Graduate 
Follow-up report. Of the 14 graduates, 12 responded to the survey. The average hourly 
wage was $20.85/hour with an average annual salary range of $48,100-$48,256. Of those 
that responded, 100% were employed in their field of study. 
8-week Courses/Part-time Track: Faculty are focusing on course content that best fits the 
8-week model. Spring term will be a blend of 16-week and 8-week courses. Further, the 
faculty will be working with the academic advisor to develop a part-time track that will 
meet student need. Based on current plan, there are six courses that will be offered in 
the 8-week format. 

o ABET Accreditation: Chris gave an overview of the Accreditation Board for Engineering & 
Technology (ABET). NTC is investigating whether it should pursue accreditation for its pre-
engineering programs. It is proof that NTC has met standards that are essential to the different 
fields. While compiling the data/documentation to prove the programs seeking accreditation meet 
the necessary standards is time consuming, NTC believes that gathering that data will only 
strengthen and improve the program. This process will yield data and insights to allow for 
continuous improvement. Throughout the discussion, the landing point was that the Advisory 
committee would be supportive of the program pursuing ABET accreditation as long as NTC 
would be able to keep the Mechanical Design program as is and not adopt WTC’s Mechanical 
Engineering Technology program.  

o Curriculum/Assessment 
Curriculum Modification – Applied Mechanical CAD Technician technical program (1-year 
program) – Changing College Algebra with Applications (10804195) with Intermediate 
Algebra with Applications (10804118): Chris Severson shared that according to the WTCS 
office, one-year technical diploma programs could not have an ‘or’ or alternate course in 
its curriculum. Students were struggling to achieve the math scores necessary to enroll in 
the more rigorous algebra class (3-credit). This meant, students were having to take 
additional coursework in preparation for the algebra credential. In an effort to ensure 
student success and to remove barriers, NTC chose to require the less rigorous algebra 
course (4-credit). This allows for students to ramp up with the rigors while supporting 
student success. This also allows the technical diploma to be fully embedded into the 
associate degree. The advisory committee supports this change. 
Mechanical Design Workforce Preparedness (10606103): The associate degree program 
currently requires a 1-credit course to help students become more workforce ready. This 

17/46



first-semester course covers resume development, job searches, interviewing skills, etc. 
NTC is proposing eliminating this one-credit class due to credit reduction initiative. Should 
students feel they need additional support in preparing for the workforce, these support 
services are provided/available through NTC’s Transfer and Placement office 
(resume/cover letter advisement, mock interviews, etc.). 

Chris Chula asked how do students discover the services available to them. Chris 
Severson replied that NTC has added a mandatory online new student 
orientation (NSO) class at the beginning of their program. One of the modules in 
the NSO class focuses on NTC resources, which covers the services available 
through the Transfer and Placement office. Brad Schinker shared that he went 
through the NSO class in August to explore what students were experiencing. He 
shared that the NSO class was extremely comprehensive in providing students 
with information regarding all the support services available to them. Chris 
Severson shared that a new student orientation had been offered in the past, 
but that it was never mandatory. Now, as a mandatory component to the 
education process, students are learning life skills in addition to the resources 
available to them. Chris also reiterated that this information is available at the 
spring job fair/continuing education event. During this event, employers are 
brought in and can assist with providing feedback on resume/cover 
letter/application packages, conduct mock interviews, etc. Students may attend 
workshops geared toward soft skills and workforce preparedness. Advisory 
committee fully supports the removal of this class. 

Solidworks Update: Bryan LaVigne shared that Solidworks used to be a two-credit course. 
It has been broken into two 1-credit courses. Solidworks 1 is a strictly beginner class 
taught to Mechanical Design, Machine Tool, Welding, Architectural Design Technology, 
Manufacturing Engineering Technology and Electromechanical programs. Solidworks 2 
builds on Solidworks 1 and is delivered to Mechanical Design and Manufacturing 
Engineering Technology students, tapping into more intermediate skills. The Welding 
program has a specialized intermediate Solidworks class. Machine Tool students 
complete Master CAM for their second credit. Electromechanical students complete 
AutoCAD for their second credit. The courses are designed in 8-week format. The 
Solidworks classes are also offered via Virtual College (flexible online learning). By 
breaking the Solidworks class into two levels, it makes it easier to offer dual credit to the 
high schools because now there is the basic Solidworks 1 component. The curriculum 
includes sketching, part creation, assembly and drawing; exposing the students to the 
major/basic commands. The high school student could then upon successful completion 
of Solidworks 1 come to NTC and enroll in Solidworks 2. At the end of Solidworks 2, 
students are encouraged to take the CSWA certification. This exam is free, with Bryan 
proctoring the exam. He is considering making the CSWA certification mandatory, but as 
of right now it is optional. He is also exploring the potential for a Solidworks 3 course that 
will delve deeper into content. 

o Industry Trends: Overall, employers reported that business was thriving and that many 
represented were looking to hire new employees.  

Agenda 6: The next meeting will take place April 3, 2019; 4:00 PM. 

 

18/46



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: October 25, 2018 Program Name: Nursing 

 Attendees 
Industry Members 

Deb Allar, Assistant Director of BSN @ Home Options Program, UW Oshkosh 
Janene Beck-Hafner, Organizational Development Consultant, Inclusa 
Jacklyn Chartier, Manager of Supplemental Staffing, Ascension 
Jackie Frombach, Regional Clinic Director – Northwest Region, Aspirus Clinics 
Connie Gliniecki, Director of Nursing, NCHC 
Barb Lato, Vice President Patient Care Services, Aspirus Medford Hospitals and Clinics 
Cheryl Leininger, Director of Patient Care Services, Ascension Good Samaritan Hospital 
Mindy Meehan, Director of Nursing, Wausau Manor 
Julie Reimer, Nurse Recruiter, Aspirus, Wausau Hospital 
JoAnn Weinfuter, Vice President Patient Care Services, Ascension 
Heidi Wincentsen, Lecurer – Nursing, UWSP 
Ryan Hanson, Director of Nursing,  Pinecrest  

NTC Staff: Other 

Marlene Roberts, Dean of Health Sciences 
Angela Roesler, Nursing Program 
Director/Nursing Faculty 
Luann Theis, Faculty/Nursing Student Coordinator 
Amanda Brzezinski, Learning Coordinator for 
Continuing Education and Business and Industry 

 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 
The 2018-2019 NTC college goals were shared.  The three are:  Increase student enrollments, increase program 
completion, and streamline college-wide processes. All programs across NTC are focused on these goals. 
 

In the Nursing program, there are currently 64 students in first semester, which includes 14 part time students.  It 
is anticipated that 64 students will move into 2nd semester.  There are currently 51 students in second semester; 
63 students in third semester and only 35 graduating in December of 2018.   

 
NTC is seeing approximately 30% of students coming in directly from high school, with additional students coming 
in within a few years after high school; therefore, NTC has started a High School track (for the Nursing program) 
that is a guided pathway to best serve the high school population. The track includes taking Medical Terminology, 
Getting Ready for GAP (General Anatomy and Physiology), and Body Structure and Function, etc.  High school 
students need to pass all the courses in the pathway, complete General A& P at the designated level, and achieve 
a 75 composite score on the HESI A2 entrance exam.   As long as the student meets entry program requirements, 
the student is guaranteed a seat in the program.  We have nine students for fall 2019 “tracked” to come into the 
program. 
NTC will be starting a part-time (nursing) track in the Fall of 2019.  Program faculty are working on the program 
layout.  It is anticipated that there will be no more than 16 part time students in the first cohort.     
 
One of the big changes made this year is the addition of a 4th semester preceptorship (this is a period of practical 
experience and training for a student, especially of medicine or nursing, that is supervised by an expert or 

19/46



specialist in a particular field).  There are currently 16 students doing preceptorships in the community.  The 
student completes 4 weeks in a clinical simulation course, followed by approximately 80 hours at clinical sites with 
instructors, and then an additional 80 hours in the community preceptorship.  Next semester, the nursing 
program will increase from 35 to 64 students in preceptorships.     

 
The NCLEX (National Council Licensure Examination) exam is changing the test format in 2021 moving from a 
multiple choice, labeling measure/test to more complete “Next-Gen” questions.  Questions are anticipated to be a 
higher level of critical judgement that include analyzing a patient chart, medications the patient is taking, and 
situational questions to see if the student/graduate has the clinical judgement needed to pass the exam and enter 
the current practice setting.   The nursing program is identifying ways to embed this into the way we are teaching 
and evaluating our students.  One of the things we have done is to begin the Preceptorship evaluation into our 
program.  Also, for the 4th semester students, there is a hospital simulation day in the first four to five weeks of 
the semester.  During this day, the second floor of the Center for Health Sciences building is set-up as a hospital, 
with eight to ten simulated patients, and each student has to act as an independent nurse on the unit.  The 
student is assigned a group of “patients” which they have to prioritize and complete head-to-toe assessments on.  
During this time, the students receives calls from “physicians”, they need to identify pertinent labs, request 
additional labs, receive new labs, and they receive diagnostic reports for their patients.  The goal is to make the 
simulation as real as the program can make it with real time changing information.  The students have 90 minutes 
to complete morning assessments, medication passes, and chart evaluation. The faculty also evaluates the 
students as they are going through the scenario providing another evaluation opportunity for students who are 
beginning their clinical rotations.   
 
We have also been working on how we can take more students into (health) programs.  We have about 56 
students who want to come into nursing every semester with about eight of them backing out before the 
semester starts or right after the semester starts.  Therefore, we are considering taking students from other 
education partners (UWSP, UW Oshkosh, UWEC etc.).  If these students have met the requirements at any of the 
UW colleges we have partnerships with, then they are considered to have met NTC’s requirements and can 
seamlessly enter the nursing program.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20/46



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: October 25, 2018 Program Name:  Paramedic 

Attendees 
Industry Members 

Melanie McCloskey, Paramedic Student 
Jeff Nuernberger, Manager, Taylor County Ambulance 
Jon Petroskey, Fire Chief, City of Antigo Fire Department 
Pat Trinko, Director of Operations, Shawano Ambulance 
Linda Vollmar, CC Paramedic, City of Antigo Fire Department 

NTC Staff: Other 
Sara Gossfeld-Benzing, Dean of Public Safety 
Paul Strehlow, Learning Coordinator, Public Safety 
John Connor, EMS Clinical Coordinator 
Roxie Hoffman, Administrative Assistant 
Will Isham, EMS Faculty 
Chris Munson, Program Advisor 
Paul Scheffler, EMS Faculty 
Jackie Wagner, EMS Faculty 

Ray Lemke, EMS Regional Coordinator Regions 1, 
2, and 3, Wisconsin DHS 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

NTC Updates – Sara Gossfeld-Benzing updated the committee on NTC initiatives including Timberwolf Suites and 
NTC goals. 
Program Information 
o Surveys – Graduates will receive surveys about six months after they graduate.  Employers will also get a 

survey if the service employs a graduate.  We also have a program resource survey for both advisory 
committee members and faculty.  Please complete the surveys because accreditation has an expectation of a 
high return rate. 

o Part-Time Paramedic Program Track – We want to start the part-time program again in Fall 2019.  To keep it 
financial aidable, it will be completed in five semesters with no classes over summer.  We have some 
concerns about the amount of time but have a plan for review and remediation. 

Curriculum/Assessment 
o Refresher Courses – Individuals should still take a standards refresher for license renewal in 2020.  We plan 

to put the Paramedic refresher online by next summer to follow the NREMT format.     
o Appendix G Discussion – Appendix G is from accreditation and lists what students need to do as far as 

minimum requirements for competencies.  Dr. Paul, EMS Medical Director, has looked at the list and has 
recommended no changes.  Linda Vollmar moved to adopt Appendix G as the student minimum competency 
matrix to be used by the NTC Paramedic Program.  Pat Trinko seconded.  Motion carried. 

o Platinum Planner - Platinum Planner is a database that the students, instructors, and on-site evaluators have 
access to for entering data.  All the data collection in Platinum Planner ties into Appendix G criteria and 
populates into an individual Appendix G for each student so the student can see his/her progress.  We will be 
using Platinum Planner starting in January 2019 

o Affective Evaluation – John Connor reported that we have implemented affective evaluations into every 
course in the Paramedic program this past quarter to help identify areas of improvement for the students.  
This is not just an evaluation by instructor but also by peers.  The evaluation is based on meeting the soft 
skills identified by the college.  This will be a graded portion of the class starting with 3% of the grade in 
Fundamentals and working up to 33% of the grade at the end of the program.  The evaluation will also go out 
to the clinical/field sites and will be available on Platinum Planner. 

o Tardiness Policy – John Connor reported that we have implemented a tardiness policy.  Any policies we 
implement at one level, we plan to make applicable to all levels of the EMS classes, so students would start 
out with these policies at the EMT level and carry through to Paramedic.  We had several chronically late 

21/46



people and had to implement a stricter policy to help get students ready for the workforce.  We will allow 
absence for only 10% of the class hours.  Tardiness counts as absence.  Students will have make-up work if 
they are tardy.   

Equipment/Facilities - John Connor reported that we now have a Lucas device so we can train students.  We are 
in the process of replacing a lot of our airway heads and are going to a different style that we think will be more 
durable in the classroom.  We have been cleaning out the equipment closets and getting rid of equipment not 
needed and would like to set up a rotation schedule to tie in with capital equipment so we can replace a certain 
amount of equipment each year. 
Focus Discussion – Clinical/field sites provide preceptors who must have at least two years of experience and be 
licensed at or higher than the level of the student being precepted.  All preceptors must have preceptor training.  
John Connor can do face-to-face preceptor training or the training can be done online.   
Legislative/State Updates – Ray Lemke provided the following updates: 
o Chapter 256 Changes – Chapter 256 governs EMS.  Updates include a clause for EMS care to domestic 

animals injured at scenes; EMS providers are now allowed to provide care to domestic animals at a scene 
(dogs, cats, horses, cows, etc.).  This does not cover transport.   

o Community Paramedicine/Community EMS – DHS has established two steering committees to discuss how 
to address and also work on curriculum.  We need to be looking at uniform educational standards and make 
sure all competencies are in alignment to make the program work.   

o Flexible Staffing – Pilots on this are going to start at the end of November.  This is going to be imposed by 
level instead of what the service can or cannot do. The service could downgrade and then upgrade when they 
have a higher level available.  Clarifications need to be made on a lot of different combinations. 

o EMR as Part of Licensed Crew – Several agencies are utilizing this.  It is based on population guidelines.  Ray 
said he sees lots of staffing/recruitment issues around the state, which is interesting because we are not 
gaining or losing licensed personnel.  However, many are getting licensed as EMT or AEMT as part of 
requirements for jobs in nursing homes, hospitals, or clinics. 

o Three-Year Renewal – The state will be adopting a 3-year renewal cycle for licenses.  NREMT will stay at two 
years, so it will create some issues with NREMT renewals for those who need to maintain that certification.  
Some may have to take two refreshers within a three-year period.  Renew by June 30, 2020, and the license 
will be reissued for 3 years to expire in 2023.  The educational component from July 1, 2020, to 2023 is when 
refresher requirements might change. 

o EMR to EMT Crosswalk – Tech colleges/training centers are trying to develop a program where we can get as 
many licensed and certified practitioners in the field as possible.  They are discussing a segmented program 
where the first 72 hours of an EMT class would be EMR and the rest would be EMT.  If a student is struggling 
in the first 72 hours but still meeting the requirements of the program, the student could possibly get 
licensed as an EMR.   

Next Meeting – Date is set for April 25, 2019, 4 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22/46



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: October 25, 2018 Program Name: Emergency Medical Services 

Attendees 
Industry Members 

Kelly Hanink, Chief, Riverside Fire District 
Jeff Nuernberger, Manager, Taylor County Ambulance 
Jon Petroskey, Fire Chief, City of Antigo Fire Department 
Jim Schmidt, EMS Coordinator, Central Fire & EMS District 
Linda Vollmar, CC Paramedic, City of Antigo Fire Department 

NTC Staff: Other 
Sara Gossfeld-Benzing, Dean of Public Safety 
Paul Strehlow, Learning Coordinator, Public Safety 
John Connor, EMS Clinical Coordinator 
Susie Borchardt, AHA Specialist 
Roxie Hoffman, Administrative Assistant 
Will Isham, EMS Faculty 
Jackie Wagner, EMS Faculty 

Ray Lemke, EMS Regional Coordinator Regions 1, 
2, and 3, Wisconsin DHS 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

NTC Updates – Sara Gossfeld-Benzing updated the committee on NTC initiatives including Timberwolf Suites and 
NTC goals. 
Affective Evaluations - Will Isham reported that we have implemented affective evaluations into the paramedic 
program this past quarter to help prepare students for the work force.  Traits evaluated include integrity and 
empathy.  We hope this will help curb some bad attitudes or give students more self-confidence.  We will 
implement it in the EMT classes this coming January.  It will be a graded portion of the class. 
Tardiness Policy - Will Isham reported that we have implemented a tardiness policy.  Any policies we implement 
at one level, we plan to make applicable to all levels of the EMS classes, so students would start out with these 
policies at the EMT level and carry through to Paramedic.  Attendance and participation is critical for success in 
the programs.  One issue we needed to address was tardiness; we had students who would come in a couple of 
hours late.  We will allow absence for only 10% of the class hours.  Tardiness counts as absence.  Students will 
have make-up work if they are tardy.  This is being done in the fire program also. 
EMR to EMT Crosswalk – Will Isham reported that we are looking forward to being able to offer an EMR to EMT 
Crosswalk.  The concept is that if a student successfully completes the first 72 hours of the EMT program, they 
could potentially test for EMR.  This would give them an option for a credential if they cannot complete the whole 
EMT class or do not have the capability.  November 2 is the date that guidelines will be out. 
Legislature Updates – Ray Lemke provided the following updates: 
o Chapter 256 Changes – Chapter 256 governs EMS.  Updates include a clause for EMS care to domestic 

animals injured at scenes; EMS providers are now allowed to provide care to domestic animals at a scene 
(dogs, cats, horses, cows, etc.).  This does not cover transport.  A K9 dog is considered a sworn officer and can 
be transported; however, there are no definitions on where to transport (hospital or vet clinic).  Questions 
from the committee:  Does this have to be a call that EMS is responding to?  Can someone call 9-1-1 after 
hitting a dog with a car?  Ray said administrative rules have to be opened up for discussion on these things. 

o Flexible Staffing – A service can upgrade the level of care based on the highest license level of the person on 
call that date.  This is going to be imposed by level instead of what the service can or cannot do because there 
are 839 services across the state and it would be extremely difficult to write levels for each service.  The 
service could downgrade and then upgrade when they have a higher level available.  Clarifications need to be 
made on a lot of different combinations. 

o Three-Year Renewal – The state will be adopting a 3-year renewal cycle for licenses.  NREMT will stay at two 
years.  Refresher content will still remain the same number of hours for the next licensing period.  Renew by 

23/46



June 30, 2020, and the license will be reissued for 3 years to expire in 2023.  Debate is going on as to what the 
components of renewal requirements will be for the 3-year period.   

o Community Paramedicine/Community EMS – DHS has established two steering committees to discuss how 
to address and also work on curriculum.  We need to be looking at uniform educational standards to make 
the program work.  We need to make sure all competencies are in alignment. 

Next Meeting – Date is set for April 25, 2019, 6 p.m. 
 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: Monday, November 5, 2018 Program Name: MLT/Phlebotomy 

Attendees 
Industry Members 

Dr. Edgar Betancourt, Medical Director, Aspirus – Associates in Pathology 
Staci Buatti, Specimen Processing Lab Associate, Prevention Genetics 
Jessica DeJong, Medical Technician, Aspirus Medical Clinic 
Laura Krznarich, Medical Technician, Marshfield Lab 
Sylvia Lambrecht, Technical Director of Medical Technicians, Blood Center of Northcentral Wisconsin 
Vikki Leseberg, Phlebotomist, Aspirus Langlade Hospital 
Shelley Meyer, Laboratory Manager, Wild Rose Community Memorial Hospital 
Althea Rossler, Laboratory Support Services Manager, Aspirus Wausau Hospital 
Julie Seehafer, Marshfield Labs Education Director, Marshfield Clinic 
Tonia Sromek, MLT/POC Coordinator, Aspirus Medford Hospital Lab 
Cory Sullivan, Ascension Good Samaritan Hospital 

NTC Staff: Other 

Laura Ahonen, MLT/Phlebotomy Program 
Director and Faculty 
Janet Baumann, Associate Dean, School of Health 
Sciences 
Valerie Natzke, MLT Faculty 
Rich Wilkosz, BioMed Faculty 
Tracy Brewer, Business Development Manager 

Nicole Rehwinkel, MLT Student 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

Industry members shared information regarding new and revised testing protocols. 
Phlebotomy Updates: NTC received the maximum award of a 5-year NAACLS approval. 
Phlebotomy Enrollment Numbers: Fall 2018 had 16 enrolled, 15 moving to clinicals.  Anticipate 15 students for 
Spring 2019. 
Phlebotomy Program Outcomes: Graduation rate was 82%, Certification rate was 100%, and Placement rate was 
100%. 
MLT Updates: NAACLS self-study due April 1, 2019, site visit during Fall 2019. 
MLT Enrollment Numbers:  For Fall 2019, capacity increased from 12 students to 14 students. 
MLT Program Outcomes:  Graduation rate was 74%, Certification rate was 100%, and Placement rate was 100%. 
Faculty expressed their appreciation of sites taking students for clinical experiences. 

24/46



Team Action Plans for Phlebotomy and MLT:  The main goal of each Team Action Plan is to increase student 
retention. 
Curriculum:  To keep students in the program, NTC is looking at the option of having students retake a failed first 
semester course the following semester rather than the following year. This allows students to stay on track and 
finish the program in two years, rather than drop out altogether. 
Tour of MLT and Phlebotomy labs.  Advisory members viewed equipment and facilities. 

 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2018 Program Name: IT Programs 

Attendees 
Industry Members 

Emmet McBride (DC Everest), Molly Diers (Aspirus), Brian Housley (MarTech Systems), Matt Hildebrandt 
(Stratadefense), Andrew Hale (Dirks Group), Matthew Hall (Greenheck), Jeff Dirks (Dirks Group), Troy Radtke 
(Deluxe Corporate IT), Julie Henrichs (City-County) 

NTC Staff: Other 
Jamie Chavez (Faculty), Kimberly Reed (Faculty), Ruth 
Muschinske (Faculty), Amanda Brzezinski (Learning 
Coordinator, CBI/CE), Bonnie Osness (Dir. 
Accreditation & Career Pathways), Ashlee Neve 
(Career Coach), Ellen Anderson (Academic Advisor), 
Jake Schneider (Faculty), Clay Hess (Faculty), 
Raymond Gruetzmacher (Faculty), Calvin Thorne 
(Faculty), Dominic Gruetzmacher (Faculty), Jake 
Seever (Instructional Assistant), Chris Severson 
(Dean, ScET) 

 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

Agenda 1: All present introduced themselves and the organizations they represent. 
Agenda 2: Meeting minutes were reviewed. A sign-in sheet was circulated. 
Agenda 3: Chris Severson gave an overview of various college-wide initiatives. These included reporting 69% 
NTC student base identify as part-time students and the steps NTC is taking to provide greater flexibility to 
meet student need/demand; NTC programs transitioning coursework, where appropriate and applicable, to 
8-week cohort class offerings in an effort in increase student success, persistence and retention; an update 
on Timberwolf Suites and how there has been a 20% increase in students attending NTC from out-of-district 
since the residence hall opened; Electrical Power Distribution-Lineman program launched Fall 2018; new 
program NTC is investigating including Gas Utility, Automation, Civil Engineering, and Salon & Spa; and the 
unveiling of NTC’s new Timberwolf Conference Center, located in old auditorium (HSC 1004) space in the 
Center for Health Sciences. 
Agenda 4: 

o Industry Trends 
Matt Hildebrandt shared they are focusing on finding good, qualified network technicians. 
They are seeing a rise in security analysis. Stratadefense primarily serves the financial 
sector. The rise in and attention to cyber security has grown exponentially.  

25/46



Troy Radtke has changed roles with Deluxe Corporate IT. Since the beginning of the year, 
Deluxe has tripled their Governance, Risk Management, Compliance (GRC) team to ensure 
compliance with CCPA and other legislation coming from the EU. Other teams within the 
organization have doubled in size. They have a hard time finding qualified candidates 
locally, so tend to hire from the Twin Cities. They are hoping to recruit more junior positions 
locally. They are hiring in all areas of information security, both entry/junior level and mid-
career level positions. 
Brian Housley shared Martech Systems has focused its energy toward moving their 
applications to mobile environment. Their end-users are laypersons rather than individuals 
with an IT background. It’s difficult to keep the applications secure and working properly 
while granting the user maximum ease when utilizing the application. 
Emmet McBride shared that they are moving toward deployment of student environments 
to mobile applications. 
Jeff Dirks shared The Dirks Group is currently looking to bring talented members to their 
team.  
Matthew Hall shared Greenheck is moving more content to the Cloud. Greenheck has 
openings for entry-level staff. Matt attended the Central WI IT Conference sponsored by 
CWITA (October 2018). He reported that it was a great event and that he intends to attend 
next year. Conference focused on Agile, Teamwork, Building Community with a focus on 
development. He believes they’d welcome feedback for future topics. 

o Program Information 
Enrollment update: IT-Software Developer has 73 new students, IT-Computer Support 
Specialist has 26 new students, IT-Web Designer has 16 new students, IT-Network Specialist 
has 18 new students, and IT-Mobile Application Developer has 2 new students. 
Graduation Follow-up Report: Chris Severson directed the advisory committee members to 
review the Graduate Follow up Report. 
IT-Service Desk Apprenticeship: The idea is that employers would have a person they would 
want to hire as a service desk person that may not have the training to be successful in that 
job. The employee would receive on the job training supplemented with six credits of online 
paid related instruction that focuses on the soft skills needed in a service desk role 
(troubleshooting, documentation, professionalism, etc.). The employer would train the 
technical content. One requirement is the student would sit for the A+ certification upon 
completion of the apprenticeship. Currently there is one student throughout the state 
enrolled in this program and the apprentice is employed at Eastbay/Footlocker.com. NTC 
currently is not offering this opportunity. 

o Curriculum/Assessment 
Curriculum changes being made for all IT associate degrees and technical diplomas were 
discussed and advisory committee members approved of the changes. 

o Facilities/Equipment 
VDI Environment: NTC is using VMware Horizon for its VDI (Virtual Desktop Infrastructure). 
NTC is providing IT students with virtual desktops that they connect to remotely using the 
Horizon client. There are 375 virtual desktops live, 165 belong to IT pool. This shows that 
VDI is being used in other areas of the college as well. Additional statistics include 6 hosts, 
264 CPU cores, 3804 GB RAM. This is a pretty exciting development and thus far utilizing 
VDI is going well. They use them as developer workstations. Windows 10 VM with multiple 
instances of Virtual Studio running. It has allowed students to purchase cheaper hardware 
and is allowing students to be successful in class with a Chromebook rather than a 
computer with a larger processor and more memory.  All in all, it’s going well and it’s 
serving student need. 

26/46



o Focus Discussion – TSA Phase II Approval: The WTCS Office requires all programs at all colleges 
within the WTCS to move toward direct assessments of program outcomes known as Technical Skills 
Attainment (TSA). These assessments are developed through collaborative efforts of faculty 
statewide/system-wide. Implementing TSA ensures that NTC is producing graduates that are able to 
prove mastery of program competencies/outcomes. Bonnie explained that TSA Phase I had been 
implemented and that NTC was seeking approval for Phase II for six IT programs. She directed the 
advisory committee members to review the TSA Scoring Guide handouts provided for review. The 
advisory committee reviewed and approved five of the six programs (IT-Network Technician, IT-
Computer Support Technician, IT-Software Developer, IT-Mobile Applications Developer and 
IT-Software Development Specialist). The last program (IT-Mobile Programmer) will be reviewed 
Spring 2019. 

o Continuing Education/Business & Industries Solutions: Amanda Brzezinski gave an overview of the 
services available through Business & Industry Services, including delivering customized training 
programs for organizations. Trainings may take place either on site or at NTC. See attached 
documentation for more information regarding opportunities offered. For more information about 
the services/programming offered by the Business & Industry team, please contact Amanda at 
brzezinskia@ntc.edu 

Agenda 5: The next advisory committee meeting is April 24, 2019, 4:00 PM. 

 

 

27/46



B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

gs
/U

pc
om

in
g 

Ev
en

ts
 -

20
18

-2
01

9
U

pd
at

ed
:  

1/
10

/1
9

D
at

e
Ev

en
t

Tom
Felch

Kristine
Gilmore

Lee
Lo

Charlie 
Paulson

Paul
Proulx

Ruth
Risley-
Gray

Dale
Smith

Maria
Volpe

20
18

Ju
ly

 9
A

nn
ua

l O
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
X

E
X

X
X

X
X

X
Ju

ly
 1

2-
14

W
TC

 D
is

tri
ct

 B
oa

rd
 A

ss
n.

 S
um

m
er

 M
ee

tin
g 

(G
re

en
 B

ay
)

X
A

ug
 7

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
X

X
X

E
X

X
X

X
Se

pt
 1

2
A

 D
ay

 fo
r N

TC
 S

tu
de

nt
s 

(M
ed

fo
rd

)
X

Se
pt

 1
8

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u 
C

am
pu

s)
X

X
E

X
X

E
X

X
Se

pt
 2

6
A

 D
ay

 fo
r N

TC
 S

tu
de

nt
s 

(A
nt

ig
o)

O
ct

 1
1-

13
W

TC
 D

is
tri

ct
 B

oa
rd

 A
ss

n.
 F

al
l M

ee
tin

g 
(A

pp
le

to
n)

X
O

ct
 2

3
N

TC
 B

oa
rd

 &
 N

TC
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
Jo

in
t L

un
ch

 (W
au

sa
u)

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

O
ct

 2
4-

27
A

C
C

T 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 C
on

gr
es

s 
(N

ew
 Y

or
k,

 N
ew

 Y
or

k)
X

N
ov

 1
5

N
TC

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

R
eg

ul
ar

 M
ee

tin
g 

(4
:0

0 
–

5:
30

)
N

ov
 2

9
S

ch
ol

ar
s 

&
 D

on
or

s 
R

ec
ep

tio
n 

(3
:3

0 
–

5:
30

)
D

ec
 4

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
X

X
X

E
X

E
X

X
D

ec
 1

5
M

id
-Y

ea
rC

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t (
G

ra
nd

 T
he

at
re

)
X

X
X

20
19

Ja
n 

15
R

eg
ul

ar
 N

TC
 B

oa
rd

 o
f T

ru
st

ee
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

(W
au

sa
u)

Ja
n 

16
-1

8
W

TC
 D

is
tri

ct
 B

oa
rd

 A
ss

n.
 W

in
te

r M
ee

tin
g 

(M
ad

is
on

)
Fe

b 
12

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
Fe

b 
10

-1
3

A
C

C
T 

N
at

io
na

l L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

S
um

m
it 

(W
as

hi
ng

to
n,

 D
.C

.)
M

ar
 1

2
R

eg
ul

ar
 N

TC
 B

oa
rd

 o
f T

ru
st

ee
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

(W
au

sa
u)

M
ar

 1
3

N
TC

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

R
eg

ul
ar

 M
ee

tin
g 

(4
:0

0 
–

5:
30

)
A

pr
 2

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
A

pr
 1

1-
13

W
TC

 D
is

tri
ct

 B
oa

rd
 A

ss
n.

 S
pr

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g 

(F
on

d 
du

 L
ac

)
A

pr
 3

0
S

ch
ol

ar
s 

&
 D

on
or

s 
R

ec
ep

tio
n 

(3
:3

0 
–

5:
30

)
M

ay
 7

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)
M

ay
 9

A
 D

ay
 fo

r N
TC

 S
tu

de
nt

s 
(W

au
sa

u)
M

ay
 1

8
C

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t (
W

au
sa

u 
W

es
t F

ie
ld

ho
us

e 
9:

00
 –

12
:0

0)
Ju

ne
 1

1
R

eg
ul

ar
 N

TC
 B

oa
rd

 o
f T

ru
st

ee
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

(W
au

sa
u)

Ju
ne

 1
2

N
TC

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

R
eg

ul
ar

 M
ee

tin
g 

(4
:0

0 
–

5:
30

)
Ju

ly
 8

R
eg

ul
ar

 N
TC

 B
oa

rd
 o

f T
ru

st
ee

s 
M

ee
tin

g 
(W

au
sa

u)

28
/4

6



29/46



30/46



31
/4

6



32/46



33
/4

6



34/46



35
/4

6



36/46



37/46



38/46



39/46



40
/4

6



41
/4

6



42
/4

6



43
/4

6



44/46



45
/4

6



46
/4

6


